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Civil Action
No. 93-2052 JLG
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DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA,
et al.,
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Defendants.

)
)

)

)
)

)

PLAINTIFFS' PRETRIAL STATEMENT

INTRODUCTION

Plaintiffs are the class of women prisoners housed

in three facilities operated by the District of Columbia

Department of Corrections (DCDC), the Correctional Treatment

Facility (CTF), the Lorton Minimum Security Annex (Annex), and

the Central Detention Facility (Jail). Women prisoners from

CTF and the Annex have come before this Court because

Defendants, the District of Columbia and named officials with

responsibility for the District's prisons and prison

population, have (1) provided them with programs, services,

and opportunities that are inadequate and inferior as compared

to those provided to male prisoners; (2) subjected them to a

hostile environment characterized by pervasive sexual

favoritism and harassment, and failed to protect them from
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sexual assaults and coerced sexual conduct by correctional

employees; (3) deprived them of adequate obstetrical and

gynecological care at CTF; and (4) exposed them to unsafe and

unsanitary living conditions. Women prisoners at the Jail are

before this Court because Defendants have also subjected them

to a hostile environment characterized by pervasive sexual

harassment and misconduct.

At trial, Plaintiffs will offer the testimony of

expert and fact witnesses and documentary evidence that

support the allegations outlined above. Together, the factual

evidence and legal authority will show that Defendants'

actions and inactions have violated the Plaintiffs' rights

under the United States Constitution, Title IX of the

Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. § 1681 (1988), and

the laws of the District of Columbia, and that the relief

requested by Plaintiffs is necessary to remedy these

violations.

I. CONCISE STATEMENT OF FACTS

A detailed description of the facts in this case is

contained in Plaintiffs' Supplemental Response to Defendants'

First Set of Interrogatories, attached to this statement as

Exhibit A.

A. Background Facts

1. In the last decade, the number of women

prisoners incarcerated in facilities operated by the DCDC has

nearly tripled.
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2. Since 1989, Defendants have housed women

prisoners in the D.C. correctional system under a series of ad

hoc arrangements.

3. For several years, Defendants failed to plan

and prepare for the influx of women prisoners into the D.C.

correctional system.

4. Even after Defendants formulated plans for the

women prisoners in their care, they have failed to implement

the majority of those plans.

B. Inadequate and Inferior Proqr*a'mp

1. The Defendants receive federal financial

assistance.

2. Medium-custody female inmates are housed at

CTF.

3. Medium-custody male inmates are housed at

Medium Facility (low-medium), Central Facility (medium-

medium) , and Occoquan (high-medium) on the Lorton reservation.

4. Minimum-custody female inmates are housed at

the Annex.

5. Minimum-custody male inmates are housed at the

Minimum Security Facility.

6. Male inmates housed at CTF are special

population inmates enrolled in the voluntary 18-month, pre-

release substance abuse program or in the thirty- to sixty-day

reception and diagnostic evaluation program.
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Education

7. Defendants provide women at CTF with education

programs that are inadequate and inferior as compared to those

provided to male inmates at Central, Medium, and Occoquan.

For example, women are provided with part-time academic school

rather than full-time school, and women have only an

associate's degree program through a computer correspondence

course rather than a bachelor's degree program with live, on-

site instructors.

a. CTF is a controlled-movement facility that

was designed to have all programming activities,

including education, occur on the housing units due to

the limited facility access to centralized areas.

b. Defendants provide little or no

programming to general population women on the housing

units.

c. Staffing inadequacies and escort problems

at CTF limit women prisoners' access to centralized

programs and contribute to the inadequacy and inferiority

of educational programs.

8. Defendants provide women at the Annex with

education programs that are inadequate and inferior as

compared to those provided to male inmates at Minimum. For

example, the academic school for women has been cancelled for

several months at a time, and women are unable to attend the
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full scheduled time of college classes due to the failure of

Defendants to provide staff escorts.

Vocational Education

9. Defendants provide women at CTF with vocational

education programs that are inadequate and inferior as

compared to those provided to male inmates at Central, Medium,

and Occoquan. For example, Defendants provide women at CTF

with only one vocational education program and 3 skills

courses, whereas Defendants provide men at Central with 13

vocational education programs.

a. Staffing inadequacies and escort problems

at CTF limit women prisoners' access to programs and

contribute to the inadequacy and inferiority in

vocational educational programs.

10. Defendants provide the women at the Annex with

vocational education programs that are inadequate and inferior

as compared to those available to men at Minimum.

a. Women at the Annex have one short

vocational program in graphic arts available to only 5-7

individuals.

b. Men at Minimum are able to develop their

vocational skills by working on trade-related details

that build on the vocational education these men gain at

other medium security facilities prior to coming to

Minimum.
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Work Opportunities

11. Defendants provide women at CTF with work

details that are inadequate and inferior as compared to those

provided to male inmates at Central, Medium, and Occoquan.

Women do not work on the trade-related details available to

men such as plumbing, carpentry, and electrical.

12. Defendants provide women at the Annex with work

details that are inadequate and inferior as compared to those

provided to male inmates at Minimum. Women do not work on

many of the details available to men such as farm, dairy,

plumbing, carpentry, electrical, and auto mechanics.

13. Defendants provide the women at CTF with

industrial work opportunities that are inadequate and inferior

as compared to those provided to male inmates at Central,

Medium, and Occoquan.

a. Defendants provide no industries for women

at CTF.

b. Defendants provide men at Central with 11

different industrial work opportunities.

14. Women at the Annex are denied equal access to

the full range of industrial opportunities at Central based on

their gender. Women work in 2 industries, whereas the men are

employed in 11 different industries.

15. Defendants provide women at the Annex with work

training furlough opportunities that are inadequate and

inferior as compared to those provided to male inmates at
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Minimum. Only 3 women were approved for work training in all

of 1993, whereas an average of 50-60 men from Minimum are

employed in work training programs at any one time.

Religious Programs

16. Defendants provide women at the Annex with

religious programs that are inadequate and inferior as

compared to those provided to male inmates at Minimum. Women

do not have full-time access to a chaplain, and they are not

provided with the same range of religious study programs,

services, and group events as men.

Recreation

17. Defendants provide the women at CTF with

recreation activities that are inadequate and inferior as

compared to male inmates at Central, Medium, and Occoquan.

a. Women's recreation is limited to one hour

outside, five days per week. Women can access the gym 2

nights per week for 2 hours.

b. Men at Central, Medium, and Occoquan have

access to the outdoors virtually all day from dawn to

dusk. Men can access the gym for approximately 3 hours

per day, at least 5 days per week.

c. Staffing inadequacies and escort problems

at CTF limit women prisoners' access to recreation and

contribute to the inadequacy and inferiority in

recreational activities.
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18. Defendants provide women at the Annex with

recreation activities that are not comparable to those

provided to male inmates at Minimum. Women are limited to

using the men's gym and field only 4 hours each week, and the

women's recreation trailer is open only for limited hours five

days a week that conflict with scheduled program and work

times.

Smoking

19. Defendants provide women at CTF with smoking

privileges that are inadequate and inferior as compared to

those provided to male inmates at Central, Medium, and

Occoquan. Women are not permit to smoke at all. Men are

permitted to smoke outside, where they can access for most of

the day, or in some indoor designated areas.

* * *

20. Defendants' have displayed indifference, bias,

and stereotypical notions of women in creating unequal

programs for women prisoners.

C. Sexual Misconduct

1. Women residents are subjected to inappropriate

verbal sexual comments, advances and propositions in every

aspect of their incarceration, including on work details, in

industries, in programming areas, in housing units, and during

escorts within CTF and transport outside of both facilities.

2. Defendants' employees engage in, encourage, and

allow inappropriate sexual behaviors with the women residents
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and force or coerce women residents into having sexual

contacts and do not protect the women from such sexual

contact.

a. Employees allow women on housing units to

be inappropriately attired in the presence of male

employees.

b. Employees encourage or coerce women

residents to "flash" or to expose their bodies to

employees.

c. Employees expose their bodies to women

residents.

d. Employees touch the women residents in an

inappropriate and unwelcomed sexual manner.

e. Employees initiate and/or engage in sexual

activity with women residents.

f. Employees allow women residents to have

sexual relations with other residents.

g. Employees coerce women residents into

having sexual contacts in exchange for goods and favors,

including cigarettes, money, candy, food, and

preferential treatment.

h. Employees use physical force and threats

of physical force to make women engage in sexual

activity.
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i. Employees coerce women into engaging in

sexual activity through the use of threats, including

threats of escape reports and disciplinary reports.

3. Defendants fail to prevent the invasion of

women residents' privacy.

4. Defendants know or should know of these

incidents of sexual harassment and sexual misconduct.

5. Defendants fail to adequately investigate

reports of sexual misconduct and fail to take appropriate

action against e'mployees who are accused of sexual misconduct.

6. Defendants fail to prevent sexual harassment

and misconduct by failing to properly train and counsel DCDC

employees and by maintaining an environment where sexual

harassment and misconduct are condoned and tolerated.

7. Defendants know or should know that

incarcerated women as a population generally have low self

esteem and a high incidence of depression, and that many women

residents have experienced rape, sexual assault, or sexual

abuse prior to being incarcerated. Defendants know or should

know that because of the women's past trauma, the women are

reluctant to report sexual misconduct during incarceration.

8. Defendants know or should know that the

sexualized environment at the facilities and the sexual

contact between employees and residents causes women to

experience psychological injury and emotional pain and

distress and prevents their rehabilitation.
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D. Medical Care

1. Defendants do not provide adequate gyneco-

logical examination and testing.

2. Defendants do not provide adequate monitoring

and follow-up of gynecological conditions.

3. Defendants do not provide women prisoners with

adequate education regarding sexually-transmitted diseases and

other gynecological conditions.

4. Defendants do not have a protocol for

gynecological care for women who are HIV positive.

5. Defendants do not provide an adequate transpor-

tation system for ensuring that women prisoners at CTF are

able to keep their medical appointments.

6. Defendants do not provide adequate prenatal

care.

a. Defendants do not have an adequate

prenatal protocol at CTF.

b. Defendants do not provide all pregnant

women with adequate nutrition, and do not provide

required vitamins and iron tablets in a timely manner.

c. Defendants do not provide all pregnant

women with regular prenatal check-ups.

d. Defendants fail to inform all pregnant

women of the existence of the prenatal education classes

that are available, when they are available.

_rr]
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e. Defendants have offered virtually no

prenatal exercises classes since the opening of CTF

in May 1992.

f. Defendants fail to provide an adequate

transportation system for ensuring that women are able to

keep their prenatal appointments at D.C. General

Hospital.

7. Defendants do not provide adequate counseling

to pregnant women regarding child care arrangements.

a. Defendants do not provide pregnant women

with timely counseling to enable them to make appropriate

child care arrangements.

b. The counseling and assistance that

Defendants offer do not encourage women to consider a

variety of child care arrangements, but instead, strongly

encourages them to give up their babies for adoption.

8. Defendants do not provide women prisoners with

adequate post-partum medical care.

9. Defendants do not provide women prisoners with

adequate post-partum counseling.

10. Defendants do not provide adequate

opportunities for mothers to visit their babies who are

boarding at D.C. General Hospital and there is no written

policy regarding such visitation.

11. Defendants have failed to maintain effective

coordination and communication with D.C. General Hospital in

m
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order to provide adequate medical care and social services to

women prisoners at CTF.

12. Defendants are aware that no effective

communication and coordination exists between D.C. General

Hospital and DCDC and that this problem adversely affects

women prisoners' medical care.

13. Defendants are aware that women prisoners at

CTF are in a high risk category for gynecological diseases

such as syphilis, gonorrhea, chlamydia, breast, uterine, and

cervical cancer, and for developing complications during

pregnancy.

14. Defendants' failure to provide adequate

gynecological and obstetrical care precludes prevention, early

identification, treatment, and monitoring of gynecological

conditions; increases the risk of infant deformity and

mortality; increases the health risks associated with

pregnancy for women; precludes bonding between mother and

child; and puts newborn children at greater risk of being

placed in inappropriate child care arrangements. Defendants'

failure to provide adequate gynecological and obstetrical care

also causes women prisoners unnecessary physical and

psychological stress and pain.
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E. Conditions of Confinement

Lorton Minimum Security Annex

1. The dormitories that house the women prisoners

at the Annex are overcrowded and, as a consequence, are also

poorly ventilated, poorly lit and excessively noisy.

2. The dormitories of the Annex are poorly

maintained, including:

a. The dormitories are infested with

cockroaches;

b. The roof leaks -- in one instance,

directly onto an electrical box;

c. Mattresses and pillows are torn;

d. The hot water frequently runs out;

3. The grounds of the Annex are poorly maintained.

Dumpsters are overfilled and uncovered. The drainage system

is so poor that the women are almost ankle deep in mud

whenever it rains.

4. Women prisoners housed at Lorton are deprived

of adequate access to sanitary and restroom facilities in the

dormitories, in the industries, and in the trailers that house

their programs.

5. The food at the Lorton Minimum Security

Facility is prepared under unsanitary conditions, and the

kitchen is infested with vermin.

6. Women prisoners who work at the prison

industries eat under unsanitary and unsafe conditions.
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7. The environmental conditions suffered by the

women prisoners housed at the Annex lead to an increase in

anxiety, depression, communicable diseases, and confrontations

between inmates and with staff.

8. Women prisoners at the Annex face potentially

fatal fire hazards both in their dormitories and on the main

compound at Minimum. These hazards include the following:

a. No fire alarm systems are provided in the

dormitory buildings;

b. Inadequate fire detection systems are

provided in the dormitory buildings;

c. The dormitory buildings are of combustible

construction;

d. A high combustible load exists within the

dormitory buildings;

e. Storage areas within the dormitory

buildings are inadequately protected;

f. Interior finishes of wood paneling in the

dormitory buildings result in a severe fire hazard to the

occupants;

g. The fire alarm system in the dining room

and gymnasium is inoperative;

h. Fire exit doors in the gymnasium are

inoperative;

i. Fire drills are inadequate; and
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j. Operational procedures for response to

fire emergencies by staff are inadequate.

9. Due to the grossly inadequate level of fire

safety, women prisoners at the Annex are at risk of loss of

life and property.

10. Defendants are aware of the environmental and

fire safety conditions at the Annex and their adverse effect

on the women prisoners housed there.

CTF

11. Women prisoners housed at CTF are subjected to

bitterly cold temperatures and leaking walls and ceilings due

to construction defects in the CTF building, including a

grossly deficient heating and air handling system. Because of

these deficiencies, CTF's ventilation system has been shut off

to preserve heat and as a result, no fresh air is circulated

inside the building.

12. The living conditions at CTF are unsanitary and

unhealthy, and include the following deficiencies:

a. lack of adequate hot water;

b. excessive noise;

c. presence of mice;

d. unsanitary laundry procedures; and

e. lack of adequate cleaning supplies to

maintain a sanitary environment.

13. The food at CTF is prepared under unsanitary

conditions. In particular, the food temperatures for the
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"hot" food served to prisoners with special diets is

dangerously low.

14. The environmental conditions suffered by women

prisoners housed at CTF leads to an increase in respiratory

infections, colds, flu and other communicable diseases.

15. CTF provides an inadequate level of fire safety

due to the following:

a. The frequency and distribution of fire

drills is inadequate;

b. Operational procedures for responding to

fire emergencies by staff are inadequate;

c. There is inadequate testing of the fire

protection systems;

d. The fire alarm system cannot be used by

staff;

e. Water leakage from rain creates a severe

hazard due to the exposure of electrical equipment to

rain water; and

f. Improper storage of combustibles in the

culinary area.

16. Due to the inadequate level of fire safety,

women prisoners at CTF are at risk of loss of life and

property.

17. Defendants are aware of the environmental and

fire safety conditions at CTF and their adverse effect on the

women prisoners housed there.
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Plaintiffs understand that Defendants dispute each

of these asserted facts.

II. LEGAL CLAIMS

A. Inadequate and Inferior Programs

1. The programs and services provided to women at

the Jail are not being challenged in this case as they are

subject to the orders and decrees in Campbell v. McGruder. No.

1462-71 (D.D.C.).

2. A female inmate is "similarly situated" for

purposes of constitutional equal protection and Title IX

analyses to a male inmate who has a comparable custody level,

sentence structure, and classification status. See Klinger v.

Nebraska Dep't of Correctional Servs., 824 F. Supp. 1374,

1431-34 (D. Neb. 1993); McCov v. Nevada Dep't of Prisons. 776

F. Supp. 521, 533 (D. Nev. 1991); Canterino v. Wilson. 546 F.

Supp. 174, 206 (W.D. Ky. 1982), rev'd in part on other

grounds. 869 F.2d 948 (6th Cir. 1989); Glover v. Johnson, 478

F. Supp. 1075 (E.D. Mich. 1979). See also Wishon v. Gammon,

978 F.2d 446 (8th Cir. 1992) (lockdown inmates not similarly

situated to general population inmates for education and

vocation programs); Divers v. Department of Corrections, 921

F.2d 191 (8th Cir. 1990) (protective custody inmates similarly

situated to other protective custody inmates).
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3. Defendants' provision of unequal programs and

opportunities to women prisoners on the basis of a facial,

sex-based classification of segregating prisoners,

demonstrates intent to discriminate as a matter of law under

both the equal protection and Title IX analyses. Mississippi

Univ. for Women v. Hoaan. 458 U.S. 718, 724-26 (1982);

Personnel Adm'r of Massachusetts v. Feeney, 442 U.S. 256, 274

(1979); Pitts v. Thornburgh. 866 F.2d 1450, 1453-55 (D.C. Cir.

1989); Canterino v. Barber, 564 F. Supp. 711, 714 (W.D. Ky.

1983) (Title IX); Favia v. Indiana University of Penn., 812 F.

Supp. 578, 584 (W.D. Pa. 1987) (Title IX).

4. The lack of parity in programs and opportun-

ities available to women prisoners as compared to similarly

situated male prisoners, in the areas of education, vocational

education, work, religion, and recreation, is not

substantially related to an important governmental interest

and reflects invidious discrimination that violates the equal

protection component of the Fifth Amendment to the United

States Constitution and 42 U.S.C. § 1983. See Pitts v.

Thornburah. 866 F.2d 1450, 1451, 1461-63 (D.C. Cir. 1989);

Klinqer v. Nebraska Dep't of Correctional Servs.. 824 F. Supp.

1374, 1431-34 (D. Neb. 1993); McCoy v. Nevada Dep't of

Prisons. 776 F. Supp. 521, 533 (D. Nev. 1991); Glover v.

Johnson. 478 F. Supp. 1075 (E.D. Mich. 1979); see also Boiling

v. Sharpe, 347 U.S. 497 (1954) (equal protection component of
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the Fifth Amendment provides same guarantee of protection as

the Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment).

5. Defendants' inferior treatment of women

prisoners in education and vocational education programs

violates Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20

U.S.C. § 1681 (1988) . Beehler v. Jeffes. 664 F. Supp. 931

(M.D. Pa. 1986), aff'd without opinion. 989 F.2d 486 (3d. Cir.

1993); Klinqer v. Nebraska Dep't of Correctional Servs.. 824

F. Supp. 1374, 1431-34 (D. Neb. 1993); Canterino v. Wilson.

546 F. Supp. 174", 210 (W.D. Ky. 1982), rev'd in part on other

grounds. 869 F.2d 948 (6th Cir. 1989) .

B• Sexual Misconduct

1. Defendants' failure to prevent sexual

harassment, sexual misconduct and invasions of personal

privacy involving women prisoners, and Defendants' knowledge

that a high probability of severe psychological injury and

emotional pain and suffering exists for women who are

subjected to such misconduct, constitute unnecessary and

wanton infliction of pain in violation of the Eighth

Amendment. Hudson v. McMillian, 112 S. Ct. 995, 998 (1992);

Jordan v. Gardner. 986 F.2d 1521, 1526 (9th Cir. 1993) (en

bane).

2. Defendants' failure to prevent and remedy the

sexual harassment, sexual misconduct and invasions of personal

privacy involving sentenced inmates constitutes cruel and

unusual punishment in violation of the Eighth Amendment.
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Wilson v. Seiter. 501 U.S. 294 (1991); Hovater v. Robinson. 1

F.3d 1063 (10th Cir. 1993); McKenzie v. Wisconsin Dep't of

Corrections. 138 F.R.D. 554 (E.D. Wis. 1991); Fair v. Brown,

No. K85-535, 1990 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 13428 (W.D. Mich. 1990);

Garnett v. Kepner. 541 F. Supp. 241 (M.D. Pa. 1982); Battle v.

Seaao. 431 S.E.2d 148 (Ga. Ct. App. 1993).

3. Defendants' failure to prevent and remedy the

sexual harassment, sexual misconduct and invasions of personal

privacy involving female pretrial detainees violates the Due

Process Clause of the Fifth Amendment. Bell v. Wolfish. 441

U.S. 520 (1979) .

4. Defendants' failure to prevent and remedy the

sexual harassment, sexual misconduct and invasions of personal

privacy involving both female sentenced inmates and pretrial

detainees violates the Plaintiffs' constitutional right to

bodily privacy. Fortner v. Thomas. 983 F.2d 1024 (11th Cir.

1993); Lee v. Downs, 641 F.2d 1117 (4th Cir. 1981); Forts v.

Ward. 621 F.2d 1210 (2nd Cir. 1980); Bowling v. Enomato, 514

F. Supp. 201 (N.D. Cal. 1981); Dawson v. Kendrick, 527 F.

Supp. 1252 (S.D. W. Va. 1981) .

5. Defendants' failure to prevent and remedy the

sexual harassment, sexual misconduct and invasions of personal

privacy of both sentenced inmates and pretrial detainees

violates the equal protection component of the Due Process

Clause of the Fifth Amendment as applied to Defendants by 42

U.S.C. § 1983. See Boiling v. Sharpe. 347 U.S. 497 (1954);
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Pontarelli v. Stone. 930 F.2d 104 (1st Cir. 1991); King v.

Board of Regents of Univ. of Wisconsin Sys.. 898 F.2d 533 (7th

Cir. 1990); Starrett v. Wadlev. 876 F.2d 808 (10th Cir.

1989); Poe v. Havdon, 853 F.2d 418 (6th Cir. 1988), cert,

denied, 488 U.S. 1007 (1989); Headlev v. Bacon. 828 F.2d 1272

(8th Cir. 1987); Bohen v. Citv of East Chicago. Ind.. 799 F.2d

1180 (7th Cir. 1986); Poulsen v. Citv of North Tonawanda,

N.Y.. 811 F. Supp. 884 (W.D.N.Y. 1993); Murphy v. Chicago

Transit Auth.. 638 F. Supp. 464 (N.D. 111. 1986).

C. Medical Care

1. The adequacy of the obstetrical and

gynecological care of women at the Annex and the Jail are not

being challenged in this action because medical care in those

facilities falls within the purview of Inmates of Three Lorton

Facilities v. District of Columbia, No. 92-1208 (D.D.C.) and

Campbell v. McGruder, No. 1462-71 (D.D.C), respectively.

2. The U.S. Constitution prohibits Defendants from

maintaining a system of medical care characterized by

deliberate indifference to Plaintiffs' serious medical needs.

Estelle v. Gamble. 429 U.S. 97, 103 (1976); Monmouth County

Correctional Institutional Inmates v. Lanzaro, 834 F.2d 326,

350 (3d Cir. 1987), cert, denied. 486 U.S. 1006 (1988);

Wellman v. Faulkner. 715 F.2d 269, 271 (7th Cir. 1983), cert,

denied. 468 U.S. 1217 (1984); Ramos v. Lamm, 639 F.2d 559, 574

(10th Cir. 1980), cert, denied, 450 U.S. 1041 (1981); Todaro
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v. Ward. 431 F. Supp. 1129, 1132 (S.D.N.Y.), aff'd. 565 F.2d

48, 52 (2d Cir. 1977) .

3. Adequate gynecological and obstetrical care is

a serious medical need of women. See Monmouth County

Correctional Institutional Inmates v. Lanzaro, 834 F.2d 326,

348 (3d Cir. 1987), cert, denied. 486 U.S. 1006 (1988); Archer

v. Dutcher. 733 F.2d 14, 16 (2d Cir. 1984); Todaro v. Ward.

431 F. Supp. 1129 (S.D.N.Y.), aff'd, 565 F.2d 48, 52 (2d Cir.

1977).

4. There are systematic and gross deficiencies in

the procedures which Defendants use to provide medical care to

women prisoners, procedures which effectively cause delay or

denial of access to adequate medical care. See Ramos v. Lamm.

639 F.2d 559, 577 (10th Cir. 1980), cert, denied. 450 U.S.

1041 (1981); Kaminskv v. Rosenblum. 929 F.2d 922, 926 (2d Cir.

1991); Wellman v. Faulkner. 715 F.2d 269, 272 (7th Cir. 1983),

cert, denied. 468 U.S. 1217 (1984).

5. Defendants have failed to carry out prescribed

medical treatment, depriving women prisoners at CTF of

adequate medical care. See Johnson v. Hay, 931 F.2d 456, 461

(8th Cir. 1991); Boretti v. Wiscomb, 930 F.2d 1150, 1154 (6th

Cir. 1991).

6. Defendants have been deliberately indifferent

to the serious medical needs of women prisoners at CTF, and

thus have violated the Eighth Amendment. See Wilson v.

Seiter. 501 U.S. 294 (1991); Estelle v. Gamble. 429 U.S. 97,
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103 (1976); Eades v. Thompson. 823 F.2d 1055, 1060-61 (7th

Cir. 1987); Duncan v. Duckworth. 644 F.2d 653, 654 (7th Cir.

1981); Todaro v. Ward. 565 F.2d 48 (2d Cir. 1977).

7. By placing women at greater risk of developing

gynecological diseases and complications during pregnancy, and

by placing their unborn children at greater risk of infant

deformity or mortality, Defendants have violated the Eighth

Amendment. Helling v. McKinnev. 113 S.Ct. 2475 (1993).

D. Conditions of Confinement

1. Defendants have been deliberately indifferent

to the conditions of confinement of the women prisoners who

are housed at the Annex and at CTF. Wilson v. Seiter. 501

U.S. 294 (1991); Murphy v. United States. 653 F.2d 637 (D.C.

Cir. 1981).

2. Conditions of confinement that rise beyond mere

discomfort and threaten the mental and physical well-being of

prisoners are cruel and unusual punishment under the Eighth

Amendment to the United States Constitution. Hudson v.

McMillian. 112 S. Ct. 995, 998 (1992); Rhodes v. Chapman. 452

U.S. 337, 347 (1981); Ramos v. Lamm, 639 F.2d 559, 566 (10th

Cir. 1980), cert, denied. 450 U.S. 1041 (1981); Campbell v.

McGruder. 580 F.2d 521, 534 (D.C. Cir. 1978); Inmates of

Occoauan v. Barrv. 717 F. Supp. 854, 867 (D.D.C. 1989).

3. Defendants have violated the Eighth Amendment

by subjecting the women prisoners to overcrowding that has led

to an increase in stress, tension, communicable diseases, and


